ENB 10" Anniversary 1992-20,

Earth Negotiations Bulletin
.A.R(.ap;)rEin.g ée;vi.ce.fc;r I.En.vi;or.m;er;t z:ma Iie:/eiop;m.er;t Iile:\:]oltia;tions
Online at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/2002/pc4/

Vol.22 No. 38  Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD) ~ Wednesday, 5 June 2002

WSSD PREPCOM IV HIGHLIGHTS:
TUESDAY, 4 JUNE 2002

Delegates met for a brief Informal Plenary in the morning.
Working Group Il met in morning, afternoon and evening sessions
to continue negotiations on sustainable development governance.
The contact group on good governance met in the morning, and
finance and trade met in the morning and afternoon. A Plenary was
convened in the evening to discuss partnerships and the elements
for a political declaration.

Editor’s Note: Coverage of Working Group 111 ended at 11:00
pm.

INFORMAL PLENARY

Chair Salim convened a brief morning Informal Plenary to
report on the status of efforts to produce the “Bali Commitment” —
Draft Plan of Implementation for the WSSD. Vice-Chair Richard
Ballhorn (Canada) reported that the contact group on regional initi-
atives completed a productive first reading of its text on Monday, 3
June, and will produce consensus language. Chair Salim
announced that Plenary would convene in the evening to discuss
agreed text, elements for a political declaration to make the imple-
mentation programme possible, and how the Ministerial segment
will be conducted.

PLENARY

Chair Salim reconvened the Plenary in the evening to report
that working groups and contact groups were still at work and not
yet ready to present final reports. Consideration of the Draft Plan
of Implementation for the WSSD was therefore deferred until the
next meeting of the Plenary. Jan Kara, facilitator of informal
discussions on partnerships and initiatives, reported on consulta-
tions and a Multi-Stakeholder Dialogue where the idea of Type 2
outcomes was further developed.

Chair Salim then described possible elements for a political
declaration and invited further inputs during the Ministerial
segment. He said that elements of the proposed declaration may
address: the gap between sustainable development programmes
and fragmented implementation; the need for a world that recog-
nizes its interdependence based on commitments to diversity,
participation, and equity; and resistance to the homogenization of
world cultures.

Chair Salim also explained that Ministers are expected to focus
on the “Bali Commitment” on Wednesday, consider partnerships
on Thursday, and take up consideration of elements for a political
declaration on Friday.

Venezuela, for the G-77/CHINA, commended Chair Salim’s
outline and said the declaration should: be an instrument that
Heads of State can easily endorse; be an index of ideas to be devel-
oped by the Heads of State themselves; and give political weight to
the implementation document. Noting that the declaration is
expected to be a commitment by all states to sustainable develop-
ment, Spain, for the EU, said the elements of the declaration need
to affirm the plan of action, and expressed hope that there would be
a further exchange of views during the Ministerial segment. The
UN Industrial Development Organization called attention to tech-
nological cooperation for sustainable development. BRAZIL
requested Chair Salim to circulate these proposals in writing and
said the declaration should be forward looking. Concurring,
ARMENIA suggested that the Chair’s elements be circulated
before delegations submit their own. Noting that nearly one billion
people depend on income from export commodities, the
COMMON FUND FOR COMMODITIES said there is need to
reflect minimization of the negative effects and enhancement of
the positive effects of export commodities. MEXICO emphasized
the need for participation and said the declaration should include
commitments that governments will have to undertake in order to
attain sustainable development. Stating that environmental prob-
lems transcend administrative jurisdiction, KAZAKHSTAN
suggested recognizing environmental, over administrative, areas,
as well as financial and technical support to institutions dealing
with sustainable development and intersectoral approaches.

WORKING GROUP 111

Following a Tuesday night meeting that lasted until 2:00 am,
the Working Group, co-chaired by Lars-Goéran Engfeldt (Sweden)
and Ositadinma Anaedu (Nigeria), continued negotiating Chapter
X of the Draft Plan of Implementation for the WSSD. A short para-
graph was agreed on the role of the General Assembly, as the “key
element of an overarching framework of UN activities,” as well as
on text regarding concrete action to implement the Monterrey
Consensus. Text was negotiated on the need to enhance coopera-
tive efforts by international institutions within and outside the UN
system, including international financial institutions, the WTO and
the GEF. Near agreement was reached on language on enhancing
coordination and “coherence” —which is still in brackets — in the
approaches taken by international institutions to the implementa-
tion of outcomes of the WSSD and related conferences.

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Peter Doran, Ph.D. <peter@iisd.org>, Wendy Jackson <wendy@iisd.org>, Wagaki
Mwangi <wagaki@iisd.org>, Prisna Nuengsigkapian <prisna@iisd.org>, Alison Ormsby <alison@iisd.org> and Andrey Vavilov, Ph.D. <andrey@iisd.org>. The Digital
Editors are Franz Dejon <franz@iisd.org> and Leila Mead <leila@iisd.org>. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Director of 1ISD Reporting
Services is Langston James "Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Operations Manager is Marcela Rojo <marcela@iisd.org> and the On-Line Assistant is Diego
Noguera <diego@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United
States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom (through the Department for International
Development - DFID), the European Commission (DG-ENV), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, and the Government of Germany (through the German Federal
Ministry of Environment - BMU, and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation - BMZ). General Support for the Bulletin during 2002 is provided by the
Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Finland, the Government of Australia, the Ministry of Environment and the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Sweden, the
Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade of New Zealand, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway, Swan International, and the Japanese Ministry of
Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental Strategies — IGES). Special funding for coverage of WSSD is provided by the Government of Sweden. The
Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. 11SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca>and at 161
Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not
necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications only and only with
appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Director of 11SD Reporting Services. Electronic versions of the
Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://wwuw.iisd.ca. Satellite image provided by The Living Earth, Inc. For
information on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin or to arrange coverage of a meeting, conference or workshop, send e-mail to the Director, 11SD Reporting Services at
<kimo@iisd.org> or call to +1-212-644-0217 or 0812 36 60489 in Bali.




Earth Negotiations Bulletin

Wednesday, 5 June 2002

Vol. 22 No. 38 Page 2

The agreed paragraph on the UN Chief Executives Board
(CEB) requests the UN Secretary-General, utilizing the CEB,
including through informal collaborative efforts, to promote
systemwide inter-agency cooperation and coordination of sustain-
able development, facilitate exchange of information, and continue
to keep ECOSOC and CSD informed of actions taken to implement
Agenda 21. Other agreed text refers to: support for UNDP
programmes on capacity building, with JAPAN reserving its posi-
tion; cooperation among UNEP, other UN bodies, and the Bretton
Woods institutions; and the contribution of UN-Habitat, UNDP and
UNCTAD to sustainable development programmes.

In text on eliminating gaps and duplication in relevant interna-
tional arrangements for institutional frameworks, the EU insisted
on the retention of the term “coherence,” preventing final agree-
ment.

Paragraphs were agreed on the ECOSOC making full use of its
high level and other segments for work on sustainable develop-
ment, actively engaging major groups, and on gender main-
streaming. Although text was finalized on promoting effectiveness,
complementarity and coordination of ECOSOC functional
commissions and subsidiary bodies, the G-77/CHINA said the
bodies included in their listing in Chapter X of the “Draft Plan”
were not negotiable. There was no consensus on the close link
between ECOSOC’s role on follow-up to WSSD outcomes and the
Monterrey Consensus, and ECOSOC’s exploration of arrange-
ments relating to meetings with Bretton Woods institutions and the
WTO.

In the evening session, delegates did not agree on any para-
graphs. Delegates could not agree on when or how to discuss para-
graphs relating to the GEF, and in paragraphs on national-level
activities, they left “coherence” bracketed in text on coordinated
approaches, as well as “as appropriate” bracketed in text on multi-
stakeholder participation. On national sustainable development
strategies, the US opposed a target date of 2005, and HUNGARY
suggested using text from the poverty eradication section.

CONTACT GROUPS

TRADE AND FINANCE: The contact group, facilitated by
John Ashe (Antigua and Barbuda), continued consideration of the
subsections on trade and finance in the section on means of imple-
mentation. Based on the Draft Plan of Implementation for the
WSSD, and input from delegations, Chair Ashe attempted to draft
the facilitator’s compromise text, with a view to narrowing down
the alternatives, and covered: increases in ODA commitments; effi-
cient and effective use of ODA for poverty reduction; the use of
existing financial mechanisms; generation of new public and
private innovative sources of finance; reduction of the unsustain-
able debt of developing countries; implementation of the outcomes
of the Doha Ministerial Conference; encouragement of the WTO
members to pursue the negotiating agenda and work programme
agreed at the Doha Ministerial Conference; realization of the Doha
deadlines; mutual supportiveness between trade and environment;
and trade and technical assistance in support of developing coun-
tries.

The only fully agreed paragraph during this exercise relates to
the enhancement of benefits for developing countries from trade
liberalization, including through public-private partnerships.

GOOD GOVERNANCE: The contact group held a brief and
inconclusive meeting in the morning to discuss a new text, issued 4
June at 2:00 am, by facilitator Koen Davidse (the Netherlands). It

contains revised language for a paragraph in the draft plan and text
to be added to Chapter X in the section on national-level activities.
Delegates restated their positions, with some delegates suggesting
stronger emphasis on domestic governance, others asking for more
balance between domestic and international governance, and
others still indicating that the domestic governance theme was
already substantially covered in Chapter X.

IN THE CORRIDORS |

A number of observers and delegations reported that a ‘green
room’-type strategy had been adopted by Chair Salim and his
‘Friends of the Chair’ group who met all day Tuesday in an attempt
to identify the elements of a package to bring negotiations on the
implementation document to a close. The group is being facilitated
by representatives of the EU, the US and the G-77/China (Brazil,
Indonesia and South Africa) and was also said to involve regional
representatives and other interest groups. Some interested country
delegations were reportedly refused entry. Moreover, some high-
level observers commented Tuesday night that the strategy was
‘not working’ as the negotiations continue to be dogged by
personnel who are not in command of the issues. There were also
indications that heads of delegation may undertake a rescue plan
effort on Tuesday night.

In the course of Monday’s activities, it also emerged that, target
periods will be tied to national budgetary cycles; a commitment to
additional resources is likely; and there will be no roll-back on
agreed language. The key trade-offs that may lead to a package will
be forged around good governance, oceans, and institutions. Trade
and finance will also feature as the “glue” that binds the package if
and when agreement is reached by Friday.

IN THE CORRIDORS Il

Jan Pronk is to meet with some NGO representatives on
Wednesday morning (today). Although he has not made any formal
statements at the session, it is rumored he too has a “Type 1b” in his
back pocket.

Meanwhile, the NGO advice to delegates, published in ECO,
that they should be prepared to take their brackets to Johannesburg
rather than settle for a bad deal in Bali, has not gone down well in
some quarters. There is a fear that the NGO intervention may have
lifted the pressure off Ministers to do more to resolve outstanding
issues while in Bali. Continuing speculation (and spin) about the
prospect of some NGOs walking away from the process has been
met with a mix of skepticism and apathy.

THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY
HIGH-LEVEL SEGMENT: The Ministerial High-level

Segment will convene from 10:00 am — 1:00 pm and from 3:00 -
6:00 pm in the Nusa Indah room to hear Ministerial statements.
President of Indonesia, Megawati Soekarnoputri, UN Deputy
Secretary-General Louise Fréchette, and GEF Co-Chairpersons,
Kjell Larsson and Mohammed Valli Moosa, as well as Precious
Ngelale (on behalf of the African Ministers Conference on Water)
are expected to deliver statements.

PARTNERSHIPS: The informal consultations on partnerships
will resume from 3:00 — 6:00 pm in the Geneva Room.

INFORMAL PLENARY: The Informal Plenary is expected to
reconvene at 8:00 pm to continue negotiation on the outstanding
issues in the Draft Plan of Implementation for the WSSD, and is
expected to sit throughout the night. Check the notice board for
venue.



Communities Make The
Difference!

Wednesday, 5 June 2002
1.15-2.45 pm
Bali International Convention Centre,

Auditorium
Keynote Speaker—Her Royal Highness
Princess Basma Bint Talal, Jordan

mtlatwe

Chair

Alvaro Umana, Director, Environmentally Sustainable Development Group,
UNDP

Presenters

Victoria Tauli-Corpuz, Executive Director, Tebtebba Foundation, The
Philippines

Prema Gopalan, Executive Director, Swayam Shikshan Prayog, India
Susan McDade, Manager, Sustainable Energy Programme, UNDP
Edward Owango, Ministry of Agriculture, Government of Kenya

IDRC 3K CRDI

UNITED NATIONS
FOUNDATION




NVRONMEY;
& %

o,

20 YEARS

x 6‘,&,

- o

¥ af
* Iz a0

X

% &
<, %
< Py £, PRO?

Dr. Klaus Topfer
Executive Director, United Nations Environment Programme
invites you to a celebration of

WORLD ENVIRONMENT DAY

Wednesday June 5, 6:15 pm to 8:30 pm

In the company of the Deputy Secretary-General of the United Nations Mrs Louise Fréchette
> Cocktail reception

> Japanese singer and UNEP Special Envoy
Tokiko Kato

> Indonesian singer
and Global 500
prize winner
Ully Sigar Rusady

Tokiko Kato

Ully Sigar Rusady

> A video tribute to the life of UNEP Special
Envoy Sir Peter Blake
> Balinese song and dance

ﬁ’ffj—f‘ﬁfﬁfﬂrﬁ;h

Sir Peter Blake

Nusa Dua Beach Hotel, Bali

3 minutes walk from the BICC (the registration venue)



